AGENDA
Wytheville Town Council
Tuesday, November 13, 2007
7:00 P.M.
< Wytheville Municipal Building
WYTHEVILLE 150 East Monroe Street

Wytheville, Virginia 24382

CALL TO ORDER—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.
ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.
INVOCATION—COUNCILMAN WILLIAM B. WEISIGER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE—COUNCILMAN JUDSON LAMBERT
CONSENT AGENDA

1. Minutes of the regular meeting of October 22, 2007, and the special meeting of
October 29, 2007

CITIZENS' PERIOD

OLD BUSINESS—TOWN MANAGER C. WAYNE SUTHERLAND, JR.
COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Budget and Finance

a. Amendments to Personnel Ordinance regarding employee expenses
and driving policy

b. Real estate taxes for Agape Food Pantry
C. Appropriation of perpetual care funds for cemetery improvements
2. Public Works
a. Request for VDOT to establish an urban construction project on
Pepper’s Ferry Road and to set a public hearing concerning the

proposed project

b. Review of traffic light synchronization project at 4™ and Main and 4™ and
Monroe Streets underway



l. APPOINTMENTS

1. Notification of appointments to the Wytheville Recreation Commission to fill the
expiring terms of Mr. David Harrison, Mr. Danny Sowers, and Mrs. Kelly Sisti
(terms expire 12/31/07)

2. Notification of appointments to the Wytheville Industrial Development Authority
to fill the expiring terms of Mr. Joe Salerno and Mr. Ron Boone (terms expire
12/12/2007)
J. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS
1. Ordinance No. 1222, an ordinance amending and reenacting Ordinance No.

1028, generally known as Personnel Rules, Regulations, and Policies, of the
Town of Wytheville, Virginia, so as to include revisions to Section 7, Employee
Expenses, and Section 6, Driving Policy, of the Safety/Risk Management
Program, of the Ordinance, on first reading

K. OTHER BUSINESS

1. Setting a date for a public hearing to consider renewing the Certificates of
Public Convenience and Necessity during 2008 for Premier Taxi Service, LLC
and City Cabs of Wytheville, LLC for the operation of taxicabs, and LifeCare
Medical Transports, Inc. and Guardian Ambulance Service for the operation of
public vehicles

2. Recommendation of the Planning Commission regarding the request of BW
Real Estate Holding, LLC to rezone property located on the north side of
Holston Road between Van Mar Drive and Cove Road (area of Carrington
Place Cottages) from MA-1 Medical Arts to R-2 Residential

3. Dispensing with the regular meeting scheduled for December 24, 2007, due to
the Christmas holiday

L. ADJOURNMENT

G:\COUNCIL\COUNCIL AGENDAS\2007\111307.doc



decrease water flow to the stream because the water will be stored onsite. Mayor Crewe noted
this is required by the ordinance. Mr. Morgan confirmed that it was all required and that the
citizens did not have to trust him but trust the ordinances along with the State’s regulations. Mr.
Roy Hackler reiterated that what concerned him was the retaining wall. Mr. Morgan noted that in
terms of the traffic concerns, this is always an issue no matter where they tried to build a store
or where any commercial development is being built. He stated that a Walgreens business or
drug store business, whether it is Rite Aid or CVS, is a neighborhood business. Mr. Morgan
remarked that if someone comes to the dentist, which is located now on this property, they
could come from twenty miles away. He advised that, generally, people do not drive great
distances to a drug store and that is why they are building so many of them because people will
only go a very short distance. He noted that Walgreens is trying to capture the business of a
hometown. He stated that people coming from the north side of Interstate 81 will not go past a
Wal-Mart or Food Lion to get to a Walgreens, therefore, they are trying to service the
community. Mr. Morgan noted the similarity between the stores in Marion and Pulaski is they
are located near hospitals and doctors’ offices to serve the local people. He reiterated that they
are not increasing the traffic but taking the traffic already there and giving it a place to go. Mr.
Morgan noted another couple of points are the Town’s land use plan calls for this stream to be a
commercial stream, and there is no question it is a neighborhood stream to the people who live
near it, however, this is a commercial corridor. He noted that less than one block away to the
north is a gas station and grocery store, just coming to the south there is another neighborhood
grocery store and yet another gas station. He noted there is a bank located caddy corner across
the street from this property, the entrance to the hospital is a few hundred feet away, and if this
is truly a residential street, then the Town needs to change its land use plan. He noted the land
use plan clearly states this is one of the main arterial roads coming into the town, therefore, this
is already self-evident. Mr. Morgan noted that at one of the Planning Commission meetings Mid-
Atlantic attended, a citizen was petitioning to the Planning Department for a variance to take a
home and turn it into office and commercial use, and it was approved unanimously, and it was
approved because the Planning Board said Fourth Street is a commercial street. He stated he
understands the concerns of anyone who has lived in the neighborhood, particularly ones who
have lived there for numerous years. Mr. Morgan advised he understands this is their home, but
this is a road that comes from an interstate highway and the neighborhood is within one half a
mile of a two hundred thousand square foot Wal-Mart and only a few feet from the main street
and people believe that Fourth Street will stay a residential street. He stated that belief ended
the day the interstate interchange was created and the Wal-Mart and other businesses built at
the specific locations. He noted, again, that he is only looking at the Town’s Land Use Plan, and
they are not looking for a rezoning, just a clarification of the way the Town defines an
apothecary. He stated Mid-Atlantic is trying to be as user friendly as possible and he does not
see noise as being a factor. He remarked this will not be a twenty-four hour store and this is not
a twenty-four hour neighborhood. He noted the stores in Marion and Pulaski are not twenty-four
hour stores, and most twenty-four hour stores are in high traffic areas and in large commercial
development areas. He stated this site is not like that. Mayor Crewe thanked Mr. Morgan.

Mayor Crewe recognized Mr. Baldwin who wished to address the Council and Mr. Morgan’s
comments. He stated if Mid-Atlantic was so insistent on catching traffic from the interstate why
they did not look at the new site located across from Wal-Mart. Mr. Morgan responded that he
understood that area was reserved by Home Depot.

Mayor Crewe noted Ms. Dot Alexander wished to comment. Ms. Alexander stated she had one
further question. She noted on the agenda that Council was having the public hearing in request
of a special exception permit. Mayor Crewe confirmed that this was correct and that Walgreens
was asking for a special exception permit and not a rezoning.

Vice-Mayor King stated she would like to make a comment. She stated that Council was
enlightened on the news of a Home Depot being interested in that location and Council was not
aware that Home Depot was locating to the site. Mr. Morgan noted he was speaking out of turn
and that it was not his property.

Mr. Baldwin noted that the whole question of rezoning was confusing. He stated at one point of
the public hearing, Mr. Saliba stated it was not a rezoning and at another point, he said it was
and noted the sign located on the site said “proposed rezoning” and smaller letters below stated
special exception permit. Mayor Crewe stated the sign is a form sign that it is filled in to state
that it is a special exception. He reiterated this is not a request for rezoning and it is a request
for a special exception. He noted the Town has taken the position that this Walgreens store
does not fit within the present zoning of being an apothecary and the Town has taken the
position this is not an apothecary being proposed but a retail store, therefore, it does not fit in
the present medical arts zoning classification presently there. Mayor Crewe reiterated that the
Mid-Atlantic Corporation has asked for a special exception to make it clear that this facility
would fit into this particular zone, and they are not asking to change the zone but asking for a



special exception permit to state even if it does not fit the present defined apothecary definition,
it fits into this zone by a special exception for this use to occur in this medical arts zoning.
Mayor Crewe remarked the best explanation he could give of the terminology was the Town
states this is a round peg in a square hole and it does not fit, however, Mid-Atlantic is stating to
make this peg fit into the hole. Mayor Crewe stated this is the best analogy that he can use. He
noted that it is to remove all doubt before Mid-Atlantic proceeds with their project. Mayor Crewe
inquired of Council if he stated that correctly. It was noted that was correct.

Mayor Crewe inquired if anyone else wished to speak during the public hearing or if anyone
from Council wished to speak before he closed the public hearing. Mayor Crewe noted his
thanks to everyone for attending and wanting to speak their mind in the polite manner in which
they followed. He declared the public hearing closed and advised that the subject will be
brought up later on in the agenda. He encouraged that if anyone was interested in this matter to
stay because it will be continued.

RE: CITIZEN'S PERIOD

Mayor Crewe stated the next item on the agenda is Citizens’ Period. He noted that Council was
glad to have everyone present at the meeting. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are persons
present who wished to address Council during Citizens’ Period. He advised that the sign up
sheets indicated no one desired to speak. There being no one who desired to speak during
Citizens’ Period, Mayor Crewe thanked everyone and proceeded with the agenda.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following:

1. The Budget and Finance Committee will meet tomorrow morning and there will not be a
Public Works meeting this week. Mayor Crewe confirmed that Councilman Lambert will
be attending the Budget and Finance Committee meeting.

RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, noted that at the last
meeting, the Committee reviewed information that was provided to them by the Police
Department concerning new State laws regarding speeding in residential districts. He stated
that over the past several months, they have asked the Police Department to increase its
enforcement efforts in residential neighborhoods in response to a number of complaints that the
Town has had. Councilman Jones indicated that apparently, speeding in residential areas is a
problem statewide, and, as such, there has been new legislation passed that would substantially
increase the fines for speeding in these areas. He explained that State law provides, if adopted
by a governing body, that a conviction of speeding in a residential area would be a mandatory
$200 fine plus $7 per mile per hour over the posted limit. Councilman Jones advised that in
addition to these fines, there would be a $61 court cost imposed. He stated the Committee is
not suggesting that the Council implement this fine schedule, but they are encouraging citizens
to be responsible by obeying the posted speed limits in residential districts. Councilman Jones
advised that the Committee does not think any action is required of the Council at this time, but
did want to note that this statute is available to the Council if the Town continues to have
problems with speeding in residential areas. A copy of the Budget and Finance Committee
report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment).

RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Lambert, reporting for the Public Works Committee, noted that the Town continues
to have certain problems with some residents who place large amounts of tree trimming debris
and leaves on the pavement for a number of weeks prior to the scheduled removal date. He
explained that debris lying in the street poses several problems. Councilman Lambert stated
that first, in some cases, it is an impediment to vehicular travel. He stated that in addition, this
debris is sometimes scattered to other locations and properties and, also, causes drainage
structures to be clogged during a rain event. Councilman Lambert remarked that the Town,
again, wants to encourage citizens to obey the rules for the brush cleanup program. He stated
that property owners should not put more than one truckload of debris at the street, and the
debris should only be placed along the edge of the street immediately prior to the scheduled
pickup date. He stated the pickup dates are published in a variety of locations, but citizens can
also call the Town Office to obtain the dates for the monthly pickup. Councilman Lambert
indicated that the Committee believes that this brush pickup program is one of the most popular
services that the Town provides, and they would not want the actions of some to negatively



impact everyone. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of
these minutes. (Attachment).

RE: APPOINTMENT— RECREATION COMMISSION

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the recommendation of the Recreation
Commission for an appointment of a youth member. He noted that the Recreation Commission
recommends the reappointment of Ms. Allison Phillips and the appointment of Mr. Thomas
Harrison to a one year term that will expire September 30, 2008. A motion was made by Vice-
Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones to reappoint Allison Phillips and appoint
Thomas Harrison as a youth member to the Recreation Commission for a one year term. Mayor
Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G.
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., H. Judson Lambert. Against: None

RE: OTHER BUSINESS — WALGREENS SPECIAL EXCEPTION PERMIT

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the issuance of the special exception permit to
Mid-Atlantic Commercial Properties for the Walgreens Pharmacy, which was the subject of the
public hearing earlier this evening. He noted that it was brought before the Council from a
Planning Commission recommendation that the special exception permit not be granted. Mayor
Crewe inquired of any motions on behalf of Council. A motion was made by Councilman Jones
and seconded by Councilman Lambert to accept the recommendation of the Planning
Commission and deny the request of Mid-Atlantic Commercial Properties, Incorporated for a
special exception permit to operate a Walgreens Pharmacy on property located on the west side
of North Fourth Street between West Ridge Road and West Fulton Street in an MA-1 Medical
Arts District. Mayor Crewe noted that accepting the recommendation of the Planning
Commission would mean the special exception permit would not be granted. Mayor Crewe
inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved
with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr.,
Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., H. Judson Lambert. Against: None

RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and
carried to adjourn the meeting (8:30 p.m.).

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor

Sharon P. Hackler, MMC, Clerk of Council

G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2007\Council Minutes 102207.doc

BACK



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

OCTOBER 22, 2007

1. At our last meeting, our Committee reviewed information that was provided to us by the
Police Department concerning new State laws regarding speeding in residential
districts. Over the past several months, we have asked our Police Department to
increase its enforcement efforts in residential neighborhoods in response to a number
of complaints that we have had. Apparently, speeding in residential areas is a problem
statewide, and, as such, there has been new legislation passed that would substantially
increase the fines for speeding in these areas. State law provides, if adopted by a
governing body, that a conviction of speeding in a residential area would be a
mandatory $200 fine plus $7 per mile per hour over the posted limit. In addition to
these fines, there would be a $61 court cost imposed. We are not suggesting that we
implement this fine schedule, but we are encouraging citizens to be responsible by
obeying the posted speed limits in residential districts. We do not think any action is
required of the Council at this time, but did want to note that this statute is available to

us if we continue to have problems with speeding in residential areas.

Jacqueline K. King

John W. Jones, Jr.

H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2007\BFOCT22.doc



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

OCTOBER 22, 2007

1. We continue to have certain problems with some residents who place large amounts
of tree trimming debris and leaves on the pavement for a number of weeks prior to
the scheduled removal date. Debris lying in the street poses several problems. First,
in some cases, it is an impediment to vehicular travel. In addition, this debris is
sometimes scattered to other locations and properties and, also, causes drainage
structures to be clogged during a rain event. We, again, want to encourage citizens
to obey the rules for the brush cleanup program. Property owners should not put
more than one truckload of debris at the street, and the debris should only be placed
along the edge of the street immediately prior to the scheduled pickup date. The
pickup dates are published in a variety of locations, but citizens can also call the
Town Office to obtain the dates for the monthly pickup. We believe that this brush
pickup program is one of the most popular services that the Town provides, and we

would not want the actions of some to negatively impact everyone.

William B. Weisiger

H. Judson Lambert

H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2007\PWOCT22.doc



	                       AGENDA
	     Tuesday, November 13, 2007


